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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2024.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group’s revenue increased to approximately RMB353 million,
representing an increase of approximately 20.1% in comparison to
that of 2023. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recorded a profit for the year of approximately RMB11 million, as
compared with loss of approximately RMB93 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased by
approximately RMB16 million, or 27.1%, from approximately RMB59
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB43 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products increased
by approximately RMB31 million, or 27.2%, from approximately
RMB114 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB145 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products increased
by approximately RMB44 million, or 36.4%, from approximately
RMB121 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB165 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally engaged in selling POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s
overseas customers which accounted for approximately 70.6% of
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Group exported its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella
parts to markets such as Japan, Hong Kong, Republic of Korea,
Taiwan, Spain and Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers
would usually provide the Group with their design and specification.
The Group’s sales personnel would closely communicate with the
Group’s customers. Depending on the specific needs of these
overseas customers, the Group’s sales personnel would put forward
the Group’s suggestions for modifications to design and specification
from its research and development staff to the Group’s customers
for their consideration. When customers decide on the final design
and specification, the Group would make samples and provide to
the Group's customers for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the
PRC which accounted for approximately 29.4% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Group’s
domestic customers would usually place orders with the Group from
selection of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products
which are all designed by its research and development team. The
Group also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas
under the Group’s Jicheng (%5 ) brand through sales to our
non-trading customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue increased from approximately RMB294 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB353 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, representing a increase of
approximately 20.1%, which was mainly attributable to the increase
demand for the Nylon umbrella and Umbrella parts.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales increased from approximately RMB273 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB323 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, representing an increase of
approximately 18.3%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
corresponding increase in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs were in line with the Group’s increase in revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit increased by
approximately RMB10 million, or 47.6%, from approximately RMB21
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB31 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 7.1% for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately 8.5% for the year ended 31
December 2024.

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN

The Group recorded other income and net gain of approximately
RMB3 million for the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared
with other income and net gain of approximately RMB5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. It was mainly due to the
increase in exchange gain of approximately RMB2 million, and offset
by a loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately RMB2 million and decrease in bank interest income
and government grant during the year ended 31 December 2024.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMB2
million or 14.3% from approximately RMB14 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB16 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB4 million,
or 12.1%, from approximately RMB33 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB37 million for the year ended
31 December 2024. The increase in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the increase in staff costs of approximately RMB4.2
million during the year ended 31 December 2024.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs remained stable as approximately RMB4 million and
RMBS3 million for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a profit
for the year of approximately RMB11 million, as compared with loss
of approximately RMB93 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. The improvement in the financial performance of the Group
were mainly due to () the increase in the revenue of approximately
RMB59 million during the year ended 31 December 2024, as the
demand for Nylon umbrella and Umbrella parts has increased due to
improved market conditions and (i) the reversal of impairment losses
on expected credit losses amounted to approximately RMB36 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, whereas impairment losses
on expected credit losses were recognised at approximately RMB69
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank balances and cash
(including pledged time deposits of approximately RMB23 million
(2023: approximately RMB23 million)) amounted to approximately
RMB27 million (2023: approximately RMB36 million), and short-term
bank borrowings amounted to RMB81 million (2023: approximately
RMB73 million). The annual interest rates of loans ranged from 3.4%
t0 4.55%.

The Group’s current ratio increased from 2.2 times as at 31
December 2023 to 2.3 times as at 31 December 2024, which
was calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities. As at 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio
was approximately 45% (2023: approximately 45%), which was
calculated based on the bank borrowings and bills payables to the
percentage of the total equity.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PREISKZERER AR

ITHRX

TEASXmEE—_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
HFEZHARBIEETHEMHARE
ARBRAHI2A%EHE_T _MF+ A
=+t BLEFEZHAREITEEIL-1TTH
FYEmMErEtLan#Ez2_S-_WF+=A
T —HIEFEEIRNEMHOARKLZH
BIre

Bt % B AN

Bt 75 B AR S
T-A=+t—HULEFERERE"
ARBIAETRARKEIAET-

 ECT_WNFER-_T_=F
DRI R

FREF (BE)

BHE_ZT_NEF_A=t—HLEFE &~
SEZSFRAENOARBIEE T ME
ECE_=F+ZA=T—HLEFELEE
BEOARBRBEET AKEMBHRAN
ENIERAR:-VBE-_FT_MF+=-A
=t—HILEFE ARTRNE HERRS

EAET AT RKIE N SR EE MY A
REEs0EEL: Ml EZE T -_NFE+_-H

=t HLEFEEREEERREBREER
MARMEEBL MBE_T_=F1+_
A=+ —BUEFEREREHEEBRRE
BIEOARKIBES T

RBETRMBER

R-ZE_WME+_A=+—B AEEZ
THEHERS (BEEEREHEROAR
BOSEBL(ZZE_=F :HARKB23EEH
L)) AARE2ITEBL(ZE_=ZF:4
ARMICHE L) MEHBRITETEARKE
BIABL (T ZF  HYARKIZEET)
BERERNRNF3.4% F4.55% o

AEEZAREEHR T _=—F+=A
—t+—HR22BELEAE T -_WFE+ A
=+ —H®23E DIRBEREEELERMU
RBARRBHESH - RT-_mWEF+=
A=Z+—8B EEABGBHXRAENIS% (=T
:Ei-m%%)ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%%&%H%
BIEERRBZANLHESE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2024, the inventories were approximately
RMB136 million (2023: approximately RMB115 million). The inventory
turnover days were decreased from approximately 165 days in 2023
to approximately 142 days in 2024, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 365
days.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB114 million (2023: approximately RMB93 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
decreased from approximately 150 days in 2023 to approximately
107 days in 2024, which was calculated based on the average of
the beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB51 million (2023: approximately RMB45 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were slightly decreased from approximately 70 days
in 2023 to approximately 55 days in 2024, which was calculated
based on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days.

The Company considers that the terms of the advance are fair and
reasonable. The Company is of the view that the advance would
be able to maintain stable long-term commercial relationship as a
domestic semi-finished product approved supplier to the Group.
We believe that the domestic supply of these materials is currently
satisfactory and we have not experienced any material shortage or
delay in the supply of these raw materials. Having ascertained that
we were able to comply with the stringent standards in relation to
product quality, production process and environmental compliance.
We believe that our stable product quality with a stable relationship
with our suppliers and our ability to deliver a wide range of products
to our customers have enabled us to earn recurring business.
The Company considers that the advance is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole and also meet the group’s
business strategy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmED T

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

- Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.

- As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB
and Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of
materials and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC
workers are in RMB and US dollar, therefore, the Group is
exposed to exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group is
exposed to the risks associated with the currency conversion
and exchange rate system in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and
may adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to
a variety of factors that are beyond our control, including
but not limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business
interruptions, government control, weather conditions and
overall economic conditions, all of which may have an impact
on their respective market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2023: nil). As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2023: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB47 million
(2023: approximately RMB50 million) and the fixed time deposits
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB23 million (2023:
approximately RMB23 million) were pledged to banks for bank
borrowings and bills payables.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 523
employees (2023: 449 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmED T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group had no significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and capital assets during the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under Code provision C.2.1 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should
be separated and should not be performed by the same person.
Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and decision making, and maximises the
effectiveness of the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe
that the presence of three independent non-executive Directors
provides added independence to our Board. The Directors will
review the structure from time to time and consider an adjustment
should it become appropriate.

Code provision F.2.2 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr.
Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the independent
non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 31 May 2024 due to their other business
engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
29 to 30 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

General
Meeting

ETN- E=

(number of mestings attended/number of meetings held during respective director’s tenure)
(REZARBEIESIRU/ BTEERE)

meetings
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meetings

BEHRZERS

meetings

FHzSE

meetings

REZEE

g3 g3 g8 L

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENREE 0/1
Mr. Yang Guang BrEE 01
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang WEERE 0/1
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ERIERE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERERE 11
Mr. Yang Xuetai BEAEE 0/1
Ms. Leg Kit Ying, Winnie FREELT 0/1

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

On 29 October 2024, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned as
the auditor of the Group and Infinity CPA Limited (“Infinity”)
has been appointed as the new auditor of the Group to fill the
causal vacancy following the resignation of Elite Partners CPA
Limited and will continue as such until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The annual consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by Infinity.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit
Committee held four meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group, assess the appointment of
Infinity CPA Limited as the auditors of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board and the management in
respect of the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
procedures. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Audit Committee has also reviewed, with the management
and the Company’s auditor, the Group’s significant internal
controls and financial matters in accordance with the Audit
Committee’s written terms of reference and made relevant
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee’s review
covered the audit scope and findings, external auditor’s
independence and performance, the Group’s accounting
principles and practices, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance, connected transactions, internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting matters (including the interim
and annual financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as
well as their training programmes and budget. It also reviewed
this Corporate Governance Report and an internal control
review report on the Company prepared by an independent
advisor.
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(In)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings to review the remuneration
policy, share options granted under the share option scheme
of the Company, remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group to
deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration policy
aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration to retain
and motivate high quality directors, senior management of
the Group and attract experienced people of high calibre to
oversee the business and development of the Group.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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(i) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of Mr.
Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Mr. Huang Weniji, being executive Director and Mr. Yang Xuetai and
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, independent non-executive Directors will
be subject to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, a member of the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries, who is an employee of the Company as
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reported to the
Board from time to time. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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During the year under review, Mr. Yuen Wai Keung has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled
the requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2024.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Infinity CPA Limited, the Company’s external
auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2024 by band is set out below:
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Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 1
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 1% 4R 3 EA

During the year, the Group engaged external auditor to perform audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB500,000
and RMBnil respectively. The non-audit services included primarily
ESG reporting advisory, internal control consultancy and reviewing
certain financial information.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTICORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistle blowing policy which
allows all employees and independent third parties, including
customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any possible
improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters
of financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the
reports and complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s
concerns fairly and properly. The Audit Committee has the overall
responsibility for the whistleblowing policy but has delegated
day-today responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to a
designated officer. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will subject to disciplinary sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance
basis for any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and promise to operate our business
in an honest, ethical and creditable manner. The policies are revised
in due course and all Directors and employees are reminded with
its requirement from time to time. In particular, the Group has
established a code of conduct and stipulated in the compliance
manual of the Company. Additionally, the Group has implemented
an effective internal manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the reporting of
any suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for
more details.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

U]

(I

PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such proposals for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated
at Room 905, 9/F, San Toi Building. 137-139 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong or via email to
enquiry@jcumbrella.com.
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(i) CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
905, 9/F, San Toi Building. 137-139 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.
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(IV) PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company by special
resolution passed on 29 June 2023 and effective on the same day.
Save as disclosed, there was no change in the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEBEAEBREFE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji ( = (%) , aged 56, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (15 3¢) , aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R R ¥H

A A]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 5 % 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in
August 2001. He is responsible for supervising our Group’s sales
and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from Huagiao University
with a diploma in Japanese Language in June 2000.

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({27 ) , aged 58, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for over 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (& B 4 ), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in Computing in
the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and corporate
secretarial matters. He is also independent non-executive directors of
China Asia Valley Group Limited (Stock Code: 63), Hop Fung Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2320) and Willas-Array Electronics
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 854). He is also an independent
non-executive directors of two companies the shares of which
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, namely Net Pacific
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: SGX:5QYY), since July 2020
and KTL Global Limited (Stock Code: SGX:EB7), since June 2020
and subsequently resigned on August 2021. He was the company
secretary of China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited
(Stock Code: 1372). He had held senior management positions in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr. Yang Xuetai (522 KX), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012,

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Z4%53%) , aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Liangping (2| R ) , aged 56, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of
umbrellas and the relevant products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 12 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
23% (2023: approximately 21%) and approximately 63% (2023:
approximately 66%), respectively, of the Group’s total Revenue for
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 13% (2023: approximately 17%) and
approximately 44% (2023: approximately 42%), respectively, of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 132 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to
131 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in
note 33(B) and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2024.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns when its
dividend policy considers:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of the
Group;

° the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB156,000
(20283: approximately RMB52,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEISERIZERBRA A

IR B BUR
EEeTHEMNMAEREERNRBULEHR
EEREBEUTEERERREENEARR
BRAR O

s AREWNERLBHMHRE:

o AEENRBENNA IR

o AKEMBRAERNEMEERS]

o EEKERNL AKREEXBNEHED

AR AT BEH AR R R ETS M5 EE R
RRBREZRINBER: &

s EZCHA/MBNEMRAZE-

EXgHEBETREBNASENKRERE
1B 7] B AR 3B 5 b A (0] 45 E 3 IR A 1]
FE SRS R E IR X218 AE
BEARRBEEERARINE T ERR G0
@,

=)

FR - AEEBEHARE156,000T (ZF
ZZ=F 1 AREB2,0007T) °

%t <

ARRRFANBAZEGFBHNEE M
R EE29



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Huang Wenji being executive Directors, and
Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being independent
non-executive Director shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

RHANDRRERE

REBEARAARBMEGHOER  AERARF
EEMA RARETNEAMORRERAT
BHE ARR#F EMmARRRE N QRE

B8 -

BrEERE

RN A RO A A S AR A Y 3l R R E AR SZ B
FE S BHSHEDI L EE LB EREGR -

BE -HEIFEAQFAN LHESF

AARHIMAMBARREE — T - M4
+ A=+ BLFEHMEREE BEQH
EARQNEEIMA LEHES-

BEE
RUBRFEARBEAREAR2EER:

HITES

BXELE
Bk E
MEELLE
EfErE

BYFHITES

EReRE
BERLE
FREERL

REBEARRHEBZZMANFE108E R FE112
R ATEETEXERENRBIIFRITE
EHBREERFHRLTERERERRE
FAEGRE-2REREEFHTLRERER
i

REARBEEAESEREAY BEXER
EBRiE MERRERERBERETS
ARAETHEBRARZES -ARAMER
AIMEMEEEERITE L E-

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
2024 F 1]

35



36

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2024,

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEISERIZERBRA A

EERBAN

MEEE (EERERXEERRAFAS L
EEZER)IATABHARANR-FARL
N OXEMERRSN) M T AL LEH IRFS

%o
AEEIIIMIJ

BE_Z_HNE+_A=t—HLFE #
\\\Exzii%l ERRREMEBEAG I NER

RITB TS FEEREHN-

E—L%fﬁﬁﬁwb\

ARRDEESEBUFFATESRELHR
AIES BB ENFEB LS OBERE LR
REBBIFNTEFHRBILAL

EERITETBRAEREZNES

RAREAH EERTETHRAERAR
AR EREER (EEREFMMEER ([7
ZREE M) EXVER) &9 Bt - A5 BE A 7
SEHERET HARIEREF R E G XV B
’%7&8"* BMEARRB MRS

KR (BRBREIESFLRHEKRMINBBIEX

1)

D

w*w&ﬁa%ﬁm% RAR) - R
57 RIB AN AR TR B S B Y 25 AR
g



LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY

Name of Director Nature of Interests Capacity

EENS

ERME -gvi)

Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) Long Position

beneficial owner

BXERSEE () HeE REEHEENER R
Mr. Yang Guang Long Position Beneficial owner
Bt e BEBEAA

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang Long Position Beneficial owner
MEEELE e BEBEAA

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth Long Position Beneficial owner
iR e BEBEAA

Mr. Tso Sze Wai Long Position Beneficial owner
ERMgELE e BEBEAA

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie Long Position Beneficial owner
FEELL e BEBEAA
Notes:

1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interest in a controlled corporation and
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this report, the persons or corporations who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

~

TERROEZRAXR

RARE BE AT ATSOAER AR AR
MEREERD T HEERIEFESF B EEHE
XV 2B 52 K35 SR AR A A 7] 3 58 sk A0 &%
RIBFEA LB E 5P EIBCIEEERTFEE
SRR R

Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity
ESHE £8 R E E-27)
Jicheng Investment Limited Long position Beneficial owner
A EnEAA
Mr. Huang Weniji (Note 1) Long position Interest in a controlled

corporation and
beneficial owner

BEX&ERE (HF1) ) RGN EB S N
BERBEAA
Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse
gt (M5E2) i) (L £
Notes: B3 -
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1.

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenji
has interest under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, except for those
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21
days after the offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company'’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange'’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of securities available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 41,255,000 shares,
representing 10% the total number of issued shares of the Company.

U

)

the number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate of the Share Option Scheme at the beginning and the
end of the financial year 2024 (the “FY2024”) were 41,255,000
Shares and 41,255,000 Shares respectively;

the number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
and awards granted under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during FY2024 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue for FY2024 was approximately
4.6%; and

Taking into consideration that the grant is to provide incentives
or rewards to the grantee, which is critical for the Company’s
future development and growth, the Remuneration Committee
of the Company is of the view that it is not necessary to set
any performance target or clawback mechanism for the grant
of Share Options because such grant could retain high-calibre
employees for the continual operation and development of the
Group. As such, the arrangement is aligned with the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee is tasked within its term of reference
to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Following the Consultation
Conclusions on Proposed Amendments to Listing Rules relating
to Share Schemes of Listed Issuers and Housekeeping Rule
Amendment published by the Stock Exchange in July 2022, Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules was amended and became effective from 1
January 2023.
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The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share ~ F&REEA R FERERAFEE 2 &5 :
options during the year:

Adjusted
exercise price Outstanding Granted  Exercised during Lapsed Outstanding
Name or category of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HK$)  asat01.01.2024  during the year theyear  during the year s at 31.12.2024
RZZ-mE
g@E R-ZopRE +=A

1@ -B-A8 =t-H
SREZRAER (#7) 1o RAT B FRERE FRBIE EREXH K17

(Note 1)

(fitzE1)

Category: Employees

%7 B8
Employees 12 May 2022 12 May 2022 to 11 May 2024 0.462 88,000 - - (88,000) -
(] ZEZZERATCH ZZCZZFRATZRAE
ZE-MERAT-A
Employees 10 Apri 2019 10 Apri 2019 to 9 April 2029 0.900 18,750,000 - - - 18,750,000
[E& “Z-hNEFMATH ZZ-hEFMATRE
ZEZNENANA
18,838,000 - - (83.000) 18,750,000
Note: BT
1. The exercise price and the number of share options granted has 1. ERHERENTEERBMECAR S
been adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on ZEFEELAANBEBKRNEFELFAE-
6 July 2020.
2. 18,750,000 share options to employees granted on 10 April 2019 2. RZZE-—NANFNA+HEFEERZ
were immediately vested at the date of grant. 18,750,00017 f& BR #E i 15 ) B EABI IS 55 88 -

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARESOR ES=BERONEEZNZH
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means 7 & WAL B i M E @I AR 7 E Bk
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company HEEBZEHEBHAREFLRHFEBWE
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses AN A A J& 17 Bk (B 4E 5 T X O HEF - 15 & I
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the — ZE{TEZ SR BAQF) - HEBE A RS E
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to  {E{a] i & A 7 I E R F AT EE AR AR
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire &) 2 % 7] 35 1B U B8 AN 2 &) sk (T ] E SR E Y
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities  IX PR EEEHF (BIEEEZ) EFNERZ
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate. ~ BEFET 4975 °
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong. During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF scheme
and the retire benefit scheme in the PRC that might be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 28.

AUDITORS

On 29 October 2024, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned as the
auditor of the Company and Infinity CPA Limited (“Infinity”) was
appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy following
the resignation of Elite Partners CPA Limited. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2024 for more
details regarding the change of auditor.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024 were audited by Infinity. Infinity shall
retire as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and shall be subject to appointment by the shareholders.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Infinity as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRBENRE

INEINITY

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

BPEEZAEPRANBRERZEAGRLANT

° Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
and loan receivables

B 5 Ko B e WK IR A B R M & 3 2 BB AT Ad

Key audit matter

HEELRER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

B 5 R H M REWRIR R B E Rz B E G

The Group’s trade and other receivables and loan receivables
accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s total assets.
The assessment of impairment of trade and other receivables
and loan receivables under the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model is considered to be a matter of most significance as it
requires the application of judgement and use of subjective
assumptions by management.
EEENESREMERFENRERERE E5£ER
BEKIBZ% - BHNFEZEIREREA A MR EHRE
REEHEEEE ([FAHEEER BT EHES REM
EWHRIBEBARBWER 2 BERRIEEREE 2 EI1E -
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables and loan
receivables and the sufficiency of provision for impairment
based on information including credit profile of different
debtors, historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation of
outstanding balances, and on-going relationships with the
relevant debtors. Management also considered forward
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the ECL
for the impairment assessment.
ERERBTREBAZEERR BEFEERE BES
B REEFEZERERSHARSEAREBAE
BARNBEBREER HEH &E M E U IE N R ER
ERZAIMEY RREREN TR ETERT G- EE
BIMEZRA T ERFERRENTIAR N ZAELER
UEEORER 2 EEIEEEE -
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HREXSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEREEBERELEHEZANX

Our major audit procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of the trade and other receivables and
loan receivables included the following:
BB 5 K& H At JE ORI A I B U & TR 2 R B RT
EHITHEIEEREFBEATSE:

Understood the processes and internal controls;
TRRRAE S A BB

Tested on a sample basis the ageing of
receivables at year end;

FohA5OR) S B R FE WRRTE B R R

Checked on a sample basis the settlement
subsequent to the financial year end to the
receivables;

UARRAR T SRS PO B IR 4R 5 45 2R 1% JE WK IR Y
HEEIBMN

Evaluating the external valuer’s independence,
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
AN AEMNE Y EE R REE
:HE ;

Reviewing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology, approach, assumptions and basis
of calculation prepared by management;
EEEBRERENMERE AR BEKG
BEEZDRE:

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
ECL calculation and checking the information
included in the calculation;
ASAEREEEEAENEMERL YRS
SAEMSER:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HBRERERSER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables (continued)

B REMBERRKIRURERE R ZRERE (&

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were audited by another auditor, who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 28
March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
hREKIZERARAA

HREXSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMNEREERREASZEZIN

Reviewing the ECL calculation that was
prepared by management assisted by the
external expert engaged by the Group, and
involved our valuation expert to assist us in
evaluating the Group’s estimation methodology
of ECL and check the parameters to external
available data sources; and

HEEEEE EXEEZREMIINERGH T
RENTEHEEEEAE ARMNEERR
WEE M EEERANEREEEER
BH%E W28 EINDEURRIRETT S R
Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures about the ECL in the consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Infinity CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon
Practising certificate number P0O8219

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GneBmakEtEEESEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTIT
Revenue Wz 8 353,264 294,467
Cost of sales SHE P AR (322,584) (273,075)
Gross profit E7 30,680 21,392
Other income and net gain H A A R U 255 58 8 3,131 4,656
Reversal of/(provision for) expected BRI EEEERER S (BE)
credit losses (“ECLs”), net HEE 36,209 (68,696)
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEAY (15,890) (14,450)
Administrative expenses THHEX (36,672) (32,562)
Finance costs B T K AR 10 (4,102) (3,045)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLAEF (B518) 13,356 (92,705)
Income tax expense FriS#if = 11 (2,477) (46)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RATHEE AEN
owners of the Company FRBER(FBE) 12 10,879 (92,751)
Other comprehensive income Htt 2w &=
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMHEEER B
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising BREVBEMREE L
on translation of financial statements PE H =% 760 99
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ANQ B1HEE A JE(L
for the year attributable to FREEmRE
owners of the Company (M%) 11,639 (92,652)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(BE)
Basic (RMB) ER(ARE) 13 264cents  (22.48) cents 7
Diluted (RMB) e (ARE) 13 264 cents 7 (22.48) cents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRSERIERAR AR

BEPN 2 P TR AN 4R & A S ¥R 2 AR AR D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2024 N —ZE - PNFE+_-_F=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N R 17 46,003 48,898
Right-of-use assets ERAREEE 18 12,050 12,587
Pledged time deposits 2EAE HEFER 24 - 5,000
58,053 66,485
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 5E 19 135,648 115,366
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEFAER
profit or loss (FVTPL) HEREE 20 6,427 7,779
Trade receivables B 5 WA 21 114,156 92,925
Prepayment and other receivables TR R8I H Ath FEURRIR 22 47,907 58,475
Loan receivables FEUE 23 10,398 10,263
Pledged time deposits EEAEHEFER 24 22,843 17,673
Bank balances and cash RITEHRMRS 24 4,145 13,094
341,524 315,575
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables B RAFEREMNERE 25 51,398 45,041
Accruals, other payables FEETER - HA A FHIER
and contract liabilities aNEE 26 12,595 21,929
Bank borrowings RITER 27 81,470 73,390
Tax payable FERTBLIR 2,665 2,102
148,128 142,462
Net current assets REBEEFE 193,396 173,113
Net assets EEFE 251,449 239,598

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a8 MR &

As at 31 December 2024 X —ZE - UFE+-F=+—H

2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T

Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital % < 29 10,818 10,818
Reserves T 240,631 228,780
Total equity EREEE 251,449 239,598

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2025 and are signed
on its behalf by:

HAEMBBRRERESFEN_ZE_AF=H
ZHNBHETRETE WHANATRERE
S

Huang Weniji
BENE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRSERIERAR AR

Lin Zhenshuang
HEE
Director

EF

BER 2 P TR A R B A TS SR 2 AR AR 2D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

Share
Share Share  Translation Statutory option Other Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRE
BA  RGEE EXRE AERE M HitRf AHEE REBEN  EREE
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
T A T ARETT it ARBTT ARETT ARETE T
(note (b)) (note (c)) ( ote ()
(P () ( ) (fit5E(e))
At 1 January 2023 RZZ-=%-f-H 10,818 177,3% 5,673 22,884 11,238 570 81,521 21,714 331,812
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (s (92,750)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ /§/h E B KRR

translation of financial statement ~ REELZEXZH

of foreign operations - - 9 - - - - - 9
Total comprenensive income/ ER2EARA/ (H%)

(expense) for the year BE - - 99 - - - - 92751) (92,652
Contrioution from shareholders BRTE - - - - - 438 - - 438
Lapse of share options BREXK - - - - (5,278) - - 5278 -
At 31 December 2023 and RZBZ=F+ZR

1 January 2024 =t+-BR-B-MmE

-A-H 10,818 177,394 5,772 22,884 5,960 1,008 81,521 (65,759) 239,598
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - 10879 10,879
Exchange differences arisingon BN EBHHHR

translation of financial statement ~ AEELZEZEE

of foreign operations - - 760 - - - - - 760
Total comprehensive income FNZEWAEE

for the year - - 760 - - - - 10,879 11,639
Contribution from shareholders REAE - - - - - 212 - - 212
Lapse of share options BRERNR - - - - (13) - - 13 -
At 31 December 2024 R-Z2-RE+ZA

=t-H 10818 17,30 6,532 28 5,947 120 8151 (5487 25189

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

Notes:

(@)

CHINA
SHETES

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received for
issue of shares over the corresponding par value of the issued shares.
The application of the share premium account is governed by the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

Translation reserve refers to exchange differences arising from
translating the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period.

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
and increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over the
relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result
of the reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BAERA R AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

2024 2023
—E_F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BETHRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BB A=, (E1E) 13,356 (92,705)

Adjustments for: FE

Finance costs B F5 A AN 4,102 3,045
Bank interest income RITH BUA (55) (1,308)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- HEREFEITE

equipment 4,719 4,540
Loan interest income B B A (1,073) (1,049)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 537 536
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment REEBBBRHEAERZ

loss recognised in respect of CREEERER)

allowance of credit loss model, WA EIEFRE

net (36,209) 68,696
Loss on financial assets at fair value BEATFEFABENSRE

through profit or loss BEZEE 2,063 382
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BE R

plant and equipment Bl R 73 383
Operating cash flows before EEESEHA

movements in working capital ZERERERE (12,487) (17,480)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (Em R (20,282) 16,903
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables E 5 EUGRIER D, (18 h0) 14,739 (18,807)
Decrease in prepayment and FEAST FRIE N H A W GRIE

other receivables B 10,708 13,585
Increase in financial assets at fair value LA ER ABE

through profit or loss B & R E BN (483) (3,782)
Increase/(decrease) in trade H 5 RIE R EN 2B

and bills payables g, CRd) 9,366 (15,264)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, other JEEtER - R EANFRIER

payables and contract liabilities a8l ORd) N (9,366) 15,622
Cash used in operations LRESEE TAR S (7,805) (9,223)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMEHR (1,914) (727)
Net cash used in operating activities EEEEFTRIR G 58 9,719) (9,950)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Fan Iﬁaﬁ ILE'IH«%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-MEF ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZHZRERE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  WEEME - E M & (1,909) (803)
Placement of pledged time deposits FRE IR T BFR (22,318) (37,955)
Withdrawal of pledged time deposits RIS R T BT 22,148 39,489
Bank interest received B2 WERITH B 55 1,308
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BE K
plant and equipment B2 FT1S R 12
Loan interest received BUWEFF B 1,384 1,259
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities BREES (FTA) s
REFEE (628) 3,298
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBCEESRE
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HERITIE B PTERIE 106,390 73,390
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (98,310) (68,100)
(Repayments)/advance under supplier fH F’E PERELZHET
finance arrangements, net 2z B3 83k (3,009) 850
Interest paid =) H A (4,102) (3,045)
Contribution from shareholders fREFE 212 438
Net cash from financing activities MEETHFEBEESFEEE 1,181 3,533
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents WD EE (9,166) (3,119
Cash and cash equivalents at BEMIZEER
the beginning of the reporting period REEEY 13,094 16,571
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEZRSBHE 217 (358)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BEPRZRER
the reporting period ReZEEY
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 4,145 13,094

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRSERIERAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Jicheng Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liabilities and is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Huang Weniji (‘Mr. Huang”).

The address of the registered office is Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building,
275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is
engaged in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of umbrellas
and the relevant products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) since the principal subsidiaries are
operating in RMB environment and the functional currency of
these subsidiaries is RMB.

— B E R
ARARZE—NFEANA+ZHREA
ERESNFETHRERS MK LA
BEBRARBERNDREBHER S
FIBR AR (B £ HHERE
fi% A &) A& Jicheng Investment Limited * 3%
NANEBEZHE ([RBEXHES])
AR ZAERARBERENELE
(TERAE]) B IRIEH -

5 8% 25 B2 #b 41k 5 Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands ° Zx
NEINBEREZ FELEEMBLNBERE
B R2755R BERC RN E904% AN R At
EREER MEEMBRAREENSE
BERIHENERARAER-

ARmzheeE®rET ([Bx]) -#
REERBRANRARE(TARE])
REKELETENBRARZYEERR
ARE  BFAMBHRERAARBZS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 2.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2.1

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Supplier Finance Arrangement

Amendment to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the
current year has no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEISERIZERBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS HKFRS 2. EHAFII RLETEBH B R

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued) HERGEHER (2)

2.1 AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 21 AEXFEBRBEERNLEITE
THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT BUEREERSTER (&)
YEAR (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance EBEIERETEREBHER
Arrangements EERIETH (I55TF)—1HRE-F

HEZH

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the ERGHERBTR REBM R
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and HERF7IHRASFT B A E g Hh
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The B HERE BRI ET
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended TELRBIMNEER - ZZIERT B AR
to assist users of financial statements in understanding EEEBBYHERERERE T HF
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an HEERELHEERNAEE R
entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. EHRERTDESRERMNTZE K
The group has provided additional disclosures related to EBEE A 25 PIRHEZEE
the amendments in note 25. FIABRERREONGE R o

2.2 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING 22 CEMEMKRERNFITRE

STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE BB BREERSHE
Al

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWAKRREAERAUTERM

amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have BERESNFE REIEFTH B

been issued but are not yet effective: B RSk R E A

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements®

&SRS R 1857 RGeSO DNE S

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments?
BERUBMEENFORRBEBMBMEE SRIASBERIEMNIET
BIE7SR (BETR)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contract Referencing Nature — dependent Electricity?
ERMBRELNBORRBENBRE PRABBALREEST NNEL?
AERIETHE (1BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
ER ST EAE8RE L BEMHRELUE REFEHEABEQARXAECEZHNEELSIRAY

105% (IBETA)
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
BB ERE219 (BFTA) BRZ A g
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
Standards - Volume 11 and HKAS 72
EEMBREERSHELZ FESE— BEMBREENE 1R BBV BREENETR FEY
£11% B ELEAEN  BAEMBRELEAE10% REEG:T
AR E7IRAEE]?
1 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or ! RZE-_RAF—A—Hz 2’
after 1 January 2025 FIAHFE RS M AR
2 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or 2 RZZBZ_RF-A—B®zi
after 1 January 2026 50 B F T2 2R 5 B AR 3
3 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or 8 RZEZt+F—-—A—Hzz#&
after 1 January 2027 FIaMFE RS BAMAER
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 i) R T E o8 | M AE AR B B - B A
for adoption HER A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 2.
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

2.2 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been
brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes,
HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation
within the statement of profit or loss, including specified
totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify
all income and expenses within the statement of profit
or loss into one of the five categories: operating,
investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued
operations, and to present two new defined subtotals.
It also requires disclosures about management-defined
performance measures in a single note and introduces
enhanced requirements on the grouping (aggregation
and disaggregation) and the location of information in
both the primary financial statements and the notes.
Some requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are
moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As
a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings Per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition,
there are minor consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs will be effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with
earlier application permitted. Retrospective application
is required. The Group is currently analysing the new
requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS
18 on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
hREKIZERARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards, which
includes all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”), and
HK (IFRIC) Interpretations, HK Interpretations and HK (SIC)
Interpretations (collectively referred to as “Interpretations”),
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rule”) and
by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING
(continueq)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
LEASES (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the translation reserve are not reclassified to
profit or loss subsequently.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &%= —

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other income and net gain” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from the ultimate holding company,
loan receivable, fixed time deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to mest
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments through a loss
allowance account.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses, other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The average
credit period is 90 days upon delivery.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

INCOME TAX

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit or loss before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
INCOME TAX (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme are
expensed as incurred and are vested in accordance with
the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the
scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes operated by the government
of the PRC is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS Accounting Standards requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
PROVISIONS (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

RELATED PARTY

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

RELATED PARTY (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

)

(V)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s major accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

Trade and other receivables and loan receivables are assessed
for ECL. In addition, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECL for trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables,
other receivables and loan receivables are disclosed in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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86

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bills payables and bank borrowings, net of bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to the owner of the
Company, which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of the existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

EXERER

AEEEEEEAUBRASENER
AFELE WERBLLER RESS
BRABRRGERERNE R NEE 2 EE
RIFEBEFERRTIE -

AEENBEARBERREERFHRE (21
FER RiE MRITIER) MR B|ITAEE
RREARKRBHEAARERER (2
REBRTIRARERE)

EETEHRNEARB - ERZBITH
—#WD BEEEREARARERENR
MERERER NEERSRIBEES ZHEE
BERBEBIMNEE BT REITH
EHKBOREEE FHEEEER
mREe

AREEHEETIEMINEPIEINNE RR

E°

RBERRNEERBLLERNT

2024 2023
—E-NF —T=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBFT
Total debts (note) BER R () 112,728 107,657
Less: Bank balances and cash W RITEBREIRS (4,145) (13,094)
Net debt B H5E 108,583 94,563
Total equity ey e 251,449 239,598
Net debt to equity ratio FEERRILE 43% 40%
Total debts to equity ratio wEEERLE 45% 45%

Note: Total debts comprise bills payables and bank borrowings
as detailed in notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRSERIERAR AR

MisE: EBABERESS VB RERMT5
K275 RIFF AL ) FE A AR R R 1T 8

E
A °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7. €®IHE
(A)

SRTEWNER

2024 2023
—E-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost AR 157,018 144,654
At fair value through profit or loss BATER AEE 6,427 7,779
Financial liabilities cEE
At amortised cost biog: R0 N 138,853 123,763
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HHXEREEEEZERBEER

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivables, amount
due from ultimate holding company, pledged time
deposits, bank balances and cash, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses, other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments for the Group are
disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, other price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

AEBENTIESRTABEES
& U R TR ~ EL At B UK TR - IEIE
o B RRZER AR KA C
RERFEFR RITEHERE R
RNPFEFABRENEHEE BH
ENRBENENRE EBtER-
H A & A SRIE S SRTT AR - AR E
MEMTAFBRENGS WK
WREM

ZEERMTAZEBERRBRED
SR (5% E R H A E S E R
EHZERE) EFERRETRHE
TR T XEIN AP ZF R
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

7. &®IH#)
B) BHXEAMREEEHERBE (&)

Market risk 5 m

Currency risk Bk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases REBBUAETL(IERT]) BT
denominated in United States dollar (“USD”), Japanese (FEITEJ)&/’%E.#@Z% EE=
Yen (“JPY”) and HKD, which are different from the ZEEBRTRANASEEERE
functional currencies of the group entities carrying out X%ZUJ%E%

the transactions.

Also, certain trade receivables and bank balances and
cash are denominated in USD, JPY and HKD which
are currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets of the
Group at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BESN - E T B 5 RAGKIR  RITA
R IBE AR BT BT
B X AT kBETLIEREBE
BER2IEEE ARERRSE
HMARNINESABZEREEZR
E{ET :

Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“ECONFE —To=F ZE-WMFE —_T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT AR%¥TR AREBTT
Uusb ETT 86,928 81,448 - -
JPY Hit 22,797 18,261 - -
HKD BT 783 2,825 - -
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency ANEEE A NS R o

hedging policy. However, the directors continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase (2023: decrease) in post-tax profit (2023: loss)
where USD, JPY and HKD strengthen 5% against the
functional currency. For a 5% weakening of USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency, there would
be an equal or opposite impact on the profit (2023:
loss) and other equity and the balances below would be
negative.

Impact on profit (2023: loss) for the year

uUsD ETT
JPY BT
HKD BT

EWMIA &)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

s mbEE (&)

EEmEE (&)

BRE D
AEBTEmMEXT BTRET
SN [ B -

TREHNAAMEAREE X
T ARTRBTENEER T ES
f2E5% 2 BMRRE F1E - 6% YRR
RAAEEEZEIEAE 2 HI
ERBRAZ BREL R WK
EREHIEERSEARED
ZaHE - BRE DT E B AINE
FHEZRMAXNERIER TR %
s HR LN [E K59% 2 B E)H
BEL - NI ZEHKRRET H
RGBT RN TS T {ES% K
BBEREMN(ZE_=F B1H)
EM(ZEZ=F @))%
Tt AT RABTTA I EREZES%
B e (ZF =% ER)
REMERESEAERZTZE
MATESRE R BB

HENGMN(ZZT =% :FH)

2023

—F_=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
3,260 3,054

855 685

29 106

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
20244F F 3§

89



90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, If the prices of
the respective equity instruments had been 5% (2023:
5%) higher/lower, the pre-tax profit (2023: loss) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 would increase/decrease
approximately by RMB321,000 (2023: decrease/increase
approximately by RMB389,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed time deposits and fixed rate bank borrowings
(see notes 24 and 27 for details respectively). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 24 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
relating in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company, pledged time deposits and
bank balances. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group deposited pledged time deposits and
bank balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause
the Group’s right with respect to fixed time deposits
and bank balances held to be delayed or limited. The
directors monitor the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were
minimal.

For other receivables, loan receivables and amount
due from the ultimate holding company, the directors
make periodic assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables, loan receivables and amount due from the
ultimate holding company, based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of other receivables and amount
due from the ultimate holding company.

Trade receivables of the Group consist of a large number
of customers and spread across geographical areas.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueqd)

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables based on a
provision matrix and on individual basis for those material
long outstanding balances. The trade receivables are
grouped under a provision matrix based on shared credit
risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories
for recurring customers. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on a provision matrix within lifetime ECL
or individual assessment.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7.
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following tables show the analysis of gross carrying
amount and loss allowance of trade receivables based
on past due ageing:

As at 31 December 2024

EWMIA &)

MBEREREEERREE (&)

EEmE R B ETE (E)
TREIZABMRREDNES
& WK TR R T AR B N B 1R B R O
D

R-ZE-_WE+=-A=+—H

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
FEHEER RE#E EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Batk AR% T AR T
Not yet due i) < 185 5 18.22 90,771 16,534
1-90 days past due #1 B 290K 27.94 20,859 5,829
91-180 days past due # H91E2 180K 0.32 6,784 22
181-365 days past due #HEF181 365K 1.02 18,314 187
Over 365 days past due #1365 K A £ 100 19,265 19,265
155,993 41,837

As at 31 December 2023

RZEBE-_=F+-_A=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TEHAE5 1B X IREEE BB
% RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARET T ARET T
Not yet due i A 180 B 9.18 82,349 7,558
1-90 days past due B EI1 290K 31.50 16,061 5,059
91-180 days past due #HI91E 180K 61.30 8,765 5,373
181-365 days past due #HI181 2365k 79.79 18,505 14,765
Over 365 days past due 1 BA365 K LA £ 100 45,052 45,052
170,732 77,807

The trade receivables which were 181-365 days and over
365 days past due were all assessed as credit-impaired
based on the results of the individual assessments
of ECL of these balances, including their respective
balances that are less than 180 days past due and not
yet due. There are approximately HK$69,971,000 of
balances of trade receivables which were individually
assessed and determined to be credit-impaired based
on its risk characteristics.

1R 45 ¥ 8 #1181 2365 K M #1 #3365
KA ERE ZREWTE (21EHEH
B8 H N 8 BN R 180K F 9 )
BIEETHEREEBBIGHE
R 2ERWRELEHREREAD
R =B R E - B 469,971,0007 7T
ME S ERFIELEBTEER
BHERRBEBEREEALBAREE
DRI
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The expected loss rate are estimated based on provision
matrix and individual basis for those material long
outstanding balances. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
has net reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB35,970,000 for trade receivables (2023: impairment
loss of approximately RMB74,454,000).

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

7.

RMIA#)
(B) HHEMEEBFEREE (&)

BB R B EFE (E)
HREHBRNERKE  BHE
BEDRBEREREZAGE &
BEEHRSDE UEREHE
R E B AREREER -

Bz -_mF+-_A=+—
BIEFE ASERE S ERK
HELNREEBEBIFEHNARE
35,970,000T (Z & = = F : 5
RBEEBEN AR®T74,454,000
JT) °

TREIIZBOEE 5 EIR
ERERANEHRREEBEZH-

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2 HFE A 2 HFE A
SEEE EEFE
(B=8RHE) (EERE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
As at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—HF—H 3,353 -
Impairment losses recognised = &R E & 18 14,287 60,167
As at 31 December 2023and R-_ZE-_=ZF+_-_A=+—HK
as at 1 January 2024 —E-mF—H—H 17,640 60,167
Impairment losses recognised & &R EE 18 111 -
Reversal of impairment losses & BlE B E 18 (M 5E)
(note) (4,810) (31,271)
Transfer to credit — impaired EREEE-HE (5,121) 5,121
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZB-NFE+=-A=+—H 7,820 34,017

For other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company, the ECL had been provided under 12m
ECL. For loan receivable, the ECL had been provided
under lifetime ECL.

Note: The reversal of impairment losses was mainly due to
trade receivables in life time ECL (credit-impaired) that are
substantially received during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE — %

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

For other receivables, the ECL has been provided under
12m ECL assessment. The 12m ECL was calculated
by multiplying the 12m probability of default (‘PD”), loss
given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”).
The 12m PDs represented the probability of default
occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining
maturity of the instrument respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
has net reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB134,000 for other receivables (2023: reversal of

impairment loss of approximately RMB6,411,000). The
following table shows the movement in 12m ECL that
has been recognised for other receivable under general
approach:

e BRRHE

THME+ A=+ —HILFE

7. €®IA(#)

(B)

BEEREEERRBEE (&)

EEmBR R B ETE (E)

SREMEKKENS BHEESR
EBERE2EAEREEER
hEtie@m- 12 A FEHAEES
BhRI2EREOBE([ELD
BE]) BHBERXR([BOEX
R REAORREKA ([ZORR
WA ) MEREFES L1218 A&
B ERIET AERKREI2(E A K
THIRZEAZEM A B

BHE_Z_MWO&E+_-_HA=+—H
LR - N5 (B A L A SRR
B3 (8 &5 18 )% 58 #) A R #5134,000
(TR =F : BEREBED
AR #6,411,0007T) ° T & # 5%
— MR 73 0K B E A 18 L R TR R
T EAEMEEEENES:

12m ECL

+=-{EAEH

FEEFE

RMB’'000

AREF T

As at 1 January 2023 N-ZZT—_=%F—H— 6,702

Reversal of impairment loss B OB EEE (6,411)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZZE_=F+-_A=+—H 291

Reversal of impairment losses B EREEBE (259)
Impairment losses recognised BERRREEER 121
As at 31 December 2024 R=ZB-ZO=f+=A=+—H 157

The Group categories trade or other receivables as
credit-impaired when a customer or debtor breaches
the contract, such as a default or past due event. Where
trade or other receivables have been written off, the
Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 24% (2023:
35%) and 73% (2023: 97%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer, which is
located in Cambodia, and the five largest customers
which are located in Japan and Cambodia respectively
within the manufacturing and sales of umbrellas and the
umbrella parts segment. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

AEEREFREBBARRE LD
(ﬁﬂ%*iL%i@%%#)ﬁjﬁﬁﬁ
HREMEURED B RELERE
BERE - 1h%fh$(§élf’f%jzﬁ{m};ﬂ&m
B AEESRERICRHITTEI A
Uiz [=] 21 58 & & YRR © fis Y m - R

AN E S ERGRIELARE 224% (=
T =F:35%) R73% (ZE ==

F:97%) 0Bl AR ASERE
RIHERERRETEHHE DA

BRAEP (LRRFFE) LATEAKR
P (MR BARRIHIE) 2508 -

E&$EIEE?1*E%EPEL R o RE
EREGEERR AEEEEED

EIREK & ,\#E%EBE%E&ZE
TEEEL-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Except for the above described, the Group does not
have any other significant concentrations of credit risk.
The exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
the Group calculated the ECL of loan receivables using
three main components: PD ranging from 31.76% to
42.51%, LGD of 66.10% and EAD. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the loan receivables of
approximately HK$3,222,000 were transferred from
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) to lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the loan receivables of approximately HK$2,424,000
were transferred from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired). The lifetime ECL was calculated by multiplying
the PD, LGD and EAD. The EAD represented the
expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the balance
sheet date to the default event together with any
expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD
represented expected losses on the EAD given the
event of default, taking into account, among other
attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the
time it was expected to be realised and the time value
of money.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
has net reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB105,000 for loan receivables (2023: impairment loss
of approximately RMB653,000).

An analysis of the gross carrying amount of loan
receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as
follow:

12m ECL
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

T _EABREEERR
2HMBEHEEEBE EERE)

EWMIA &)

(B)

BEEBEEBREREE (£)

EEmE R B EFE (E)
BRUA_EFRaE SN REE AL EHE
EREHEERR -ZEEERR

BRNER I EE-

BE_ZT_NFR-_ZFT=-=

+—A=+—BILFE KNEBEF
AZEAExZ2HARBoTEREKE
HHFEEEERE N T31.76%
F42.51% K E LB E - 66.10% K
EHBARREYRRBO HE
ZE-_NME+_A=1+—HItE
€ - # 3,222,000 BT EWE K
ME2HEHEESE (EERE)
HEE>HBHEEEE (EE
ERE) - BE-_ZE-_=F+—_A8
=+ —HLIEFE  %2,424,0007%
THEKRERA12EAFESEEE
FEEE>HEHEERE (58
BE) 2HBHEEBEREY
BER ELBARIEYRR MO
MR E - B4R O35 TE 55
BOEH CEERBLEEAREE
HEGEAHRENAS LFBE
BRI AFERIREEEAER
HHER - BHBRARIBEENEN
HAREARKRMOMNTERES
Wt R (Eh e iE) BHEIRE
HIRREEHERBINIERR
EEREREEE

HEZ-_WF+=-A=+—H
IEFE REBGEREZED
FEET 1B F B 4 A R #105,0007T
TE-ZF FHREBEBEHOA
R #653,0007T) °

RZBE-_WNFR B _=ZF+=
A=+—H BWEREEASED
DT

2024
—EoNmE
RMB’000
AR®TR

RMB’000
ARBTIT

13,623 13,485

13,623 13,485
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL
and lifetime ECL that has been recognised for loan
receivables under general approach.

(B)

7. E®MIA#)

(B)

MEEBEEBERBE (&)

BB R BEFE (&
TREIIZ —RITEREYE R
RMI2EAEMEEBELRE
HEBEEERNES:

Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime ECL
12m ECL impaired)  (credit-impaired)
2B 2HEH
+-EAREH FEBE FEER
FEFE (BEEHE) (E&HRE) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARBTR
As at 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—A—H 2,424 - - 2,424
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRE>HEREEER
(credit-impaired) (EEHE) (2,424) - 2,424 -
Impairment losses recognised ~ © R EEE - - 653 653
Exchange realignment BE 3 B - - 145 145
As at 31 December 2023and  R-Z-Z&F+_A=+—HR
1 January 2024 —Z-NE—-HF—A - - 3,222 3,222
Transfer to Lifetime ECL BERZ2HEREERE (BEE
(not credit-impaired) BE) - 3,222 (3,222) -
Reversal of impairment losses % ] 6l (E /&5 18 - (1,439) - (1,439)
Impairment losses recognised R EFE - 1,334 - 1,334
Exchange realignment ER RS - 108 - 108
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+-A=+—H - 3,225 - 3,225
Liquidity risk HEE L E

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

REERDESRR ~AEEER
REFRERASFEDNER
BERREABRMNANEEZLE 2K
FORERERERNHZTE-E
BEERRTERZHABRL
FERIT & B - AR BEIKFER
TERIERARBESNEERIR -

TRBEZTEEHRRFIAE
EFTESRABEZHTIEOE
BN - R R IR B A S BZAN R
ZERANREBABZIARTER
RenEMmH - ZREBENER
AEREME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. EWMIAE#E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HMERERMEEBEERERE (£)
POLICIES (continuead)

mEEZEE ()

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2024
R-BE-ME+=-A=+—H

Weighted On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
mE  RERIR AFEBRE
FHF% 1£R 2255 R MEAH REE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR%TR
Non-derivative financial FTESRMAR
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 5 & B I N/A
eSS TiE A 51,398 - 51,398 51,398
Accrued expenses and  JERtERREM N/A
other payables [T Z0R B 5,985 - 5,985 5,085
Bank borrowings |ITEK 4.14% 82,223 - 82,223 81,470
Total Bt 139,606 - 139,606 138,853

As at 31 December 2023
RZBZ=%+-A=+—H

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 2-5 years cash flows amount
g ABERE
FHF| = PENSN MELTE FHE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARET:H
Non-derivative financial FTESRAR
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & ZENFER N/A
ENRE TEM 45,041 - 45,041 45,041
Accrued expenses and  fEFTEA R EM N/A
other payables JE 508 TEA 5,332 - 5,332 5,332
Bank borrowings RITIER 4.16% 74,014 - 74,014 73,390
Total @t 124,387 - 124,387 123,763

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors at the
end of each reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

7. T@®IHE#)

(€)

TEMIANQFE

FERAFER AEEEEFEAT
S BREE - REEEUS B — A8
ANER FNEESZEBEVEER
HEMETHE - EEEHZEE
BINEHEMBEREE BLEE
MERNERZEN 2GAEB EE
[ 7 % ¥R &5 B R (7] 3 =5 0 3R A O
ER UBEEEATEEBZIR
B o

TREJNAEERHFERMRIZE
FEEGENEMTANAFE"
HT BB M HE LR F135%
AFEAERAREI D /=R
FEES A FEAESE DAL
N2EHERMMAEREABD
ABREMEMEZUEEN T

s FARMBEEERFE-R
wWAEFENRQFE AIHA
REEXBBENTERHR
BT IS R EHBRE

s FoHHE - FERAE_ME
MNEFTERNRQAFE IR
AE—HmAERGAER
YWEFEREATABEREA
B-TABEHABATS
BETATANBAER: X

s E=AMHEEAEATH
BER@ A AEBFENAFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. &®MIA#)
(C) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) C) EWMIENLFEE)

Level 1
B

RMB’000
AR® T

R-ZE-_ME+=-A=+—H
BAEREENBHAFE
RAFEFABSHEREE
—RERFT E TR R AN E F

As at 31 December 2024

Fair value on a recurring basis
Financial assets of FVTPL

— Equity securities listed

in the Stock Exchange 6,427
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
Fair value on a recurring basis A EBEF B A FE

Financial assets of FVTPL BRATEFABENCREE
— Equity securities listed — R R LR AR S
in the Stock Exchange 7,779

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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PRSERIERAR AR

ARG 7 BUR S T RN A B
ZEHABRESHHIRZ BER
RN FEERSREER-

BHE_Z_NFRZ-Z=_=F
+ZA=+—BILFE F—H#E
FoM o HWmEE . s A
HEHE =R

UFBAFEHENEBEER
BENAFE
EERBNRAPHERETER
MEBEAERSBABOEEE
EEAFEAL-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
() REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Sales of umbrellas and umbrella parts

HEMR NIRRT

8. WamkHMKARKE
) EFEHWE

2024
—EonE

2023

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®T R

353,264 294,467

Timing of revenue recognition

At point in time R ] B

BRRENEE

2024
—F-NF

2023

RMB’000
AR®T R

RMB’000
ARBTT

353,264 294,467

For sales of umbrellas and umbrella parts, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Transportation and
handling activities that occur before customers obtain
control are considered as fulfilment activities. Following
the delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The average credit period is 90 to 180 days
upon delivery.

There is no sales-related warranty, refund or return
associated with umbrellas and umbrella parts in the
performance obligation.

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
umbrellas and the umbrella parts such that the Group
does not disclose information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales
of umbrellas and the umbrella parts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

MHEREERREEHHME &
EmmEhEEsER e R
NEBEZRFETHE (RE)F-
BRI - E R P ES I FIE 2
RIS AEMBER REHEB R A
BHEE -NRXER BFEA 2
BBErREERMIEIANRERE
RIEEEREAEETBET WK
EERBREKBANER - FHE
B AR E%90%E1808 -

e

A

o

\

PEHEEEFENTGENEEH
x5
AEECHERERRET M
HEAHWRAEBMERELER
FASEFE 121 PO A TREL
Hit NEEYEREEBASE
mERBEBRHHARS —FHATH
RELRETIAHFHEANHTH
TR £ B 40 3= 75 B B R BN A b 2
HYEFY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 8. WHERHEMBRARWE (&)

(1) OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN m EHaW ARz FLE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E =4

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Bank interest income RITH B WA 55 1,308
Loan interest income B B WA 1,073 1,049
Government grants (note) BB (M) a7 1,026
Loss on financial assets BAFEEGABREN
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZEE (2,063) (382)
Exchange gains, net PE 3 Uk & 5 58 3,689 1,539
Others Hth (40) 116
3,131 4,656
Note: PR EE
During the year ended 31 December 2024, government grants HE-_Z-_NWF+=-_A=+—H
of approximately RMB417,000 (2023: RMB1,026,000) were FEFE - WBZEREHEDNAEAR
received, where the Group had fulfiled the relevant criteria, 417,000 (ZEZ=F: AR¥
in respect of certain research and development projects 1,026,0007t)  EFAEBEEHEET
and employment support scheme. There were no unfulfiled B E R E R E 2 BERE .
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants. PR ZERAHEE AN RERK
e A RIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, which is
the manufacture and sales of umbrellas and the umbrella parts.
Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker of the Group (the “CODM”). The
CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, no other discrete
financial information is provided other than the Group’s results
and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-
wide disclosures, product information, major customers and
geographic information are presented.

PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
Poly-Olefin-Elastomer (“POE”) umbrella, nylon umbrella and
umbrella parts. The POE umbrella and nylon umbrella are sold
to various distributors and the umbrella parts are sold to other
umbrella manufacturers. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by
product category is as follows:

AEBERKEE—DH BRENHEER
ERMETEM KL DB IR R M
TEFE (AAKRENIELERRSE
([EEZ2EARARED ZABHRE
AR - TBEEERRERE DR
BREFEEEDBRE -BRAKED
EEXERMBRAIN SHEERE
DHBINPHEER AL E257T
EEERNBER EmER XTBFFP
Kot 82 & Y o

EmEHR

AEBNERENHEER B KB
([POE] )M EREER R RRBT It -
POERZ KEREERBRIHE FEERRM
DA NRETIFHRAEE T HMARE
REm - AEBEEERENE S 2 W=
ST

2024 2023
—ENEF —TE =4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

POE umbrella POE /i % 43,368 59,488
Nylon umbrella JEBER 2 144,819 114,400
Umbrella parts MRT I 165,077 120,579
353,264 294,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is located in the PRC, accordingly, no
geographical information about the Group’s non-current assets
has been presented. An analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers based on the location of operation of the
customers (i.e. determined based on the location to which the
products were delivered) presented by geographical location is
detailed below:

DEER (&)
it EE R

AEEZEEUNTE At TEL7)
BRAAKESERBEENLRER 1R
BEPEEE (AR BT )
iR S A RE K AINEE P 2 Wak tF
Hz o fraEdmT

2024 2023
—E-F —ET =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Japan SN 105,498 110,167
PRC (country of domicile) R (&BRTER) 103,945 68,989
Kingdom of Cambodia RIHET 124,243 96,860
Europe EOM 1,583 2,202
Republic of Korea [ 17,362 14,622
Other Asian countries Hap g MBEIR 633 1,627
353,264 294,467

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBXEEFZER

Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue are as follows:

Customer A BFEA
Customer B ®FB
Customer C ®FC
Customer D ZFED

BRI A B 2510% KU L2 BS 2
BB -

2024 2023
—ECIOF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR N
52,098 61,305

= 33,674

39,131 =
81,713 54,762

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Except disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10%
or more to the Group’s revenue for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAFE R A

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT

Interest expense on: Ty &EEBEzFBRAL:
— bank borrowings —RITERK 4,102 3,045
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. IEHEX

2024 2023
—E-mE =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT

PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI TS

— current tax —BNEARI IR 2,477 361

- 361

Deferred tax credit (note 28) RIER A % (FF5E28) - 315)

2,477 46
()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman () REFASHELREBEZHSZ
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any BAIRSER  NEEBASN TR
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. HEHEREBRELZES ZME
(i)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong (i) WEEBEFNESHMARSG  FBRA
Kong, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying AEAREEERB E2BEEA LR
group entity in Hong Kong are taxed at 8.25%, and F328.25% < T R G FLIE - B iR
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The 2R BB T2 H M1R16.6% 2 B K
profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for BNTRTE - BB BN E M
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be MRS EE 2 EEE B RN #
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. #B1E16.5% K& — Bl R AR FLIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11.

(i) (continueq)

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group’s income neither arises in,
nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

(i)~ Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FrEHMEx (&)
iy (#&)

EERA BHAIEB RS
R EHEAMBRANS L
TEA-Eil MIEEEHEET
8B M H i 3 BER BRI 2 16.5%
-

MRZMEFEARELRRNE
BELEREFEAKRA BARE
BNERELRE-

(i) REBEFECEMAEVEREEMN
BERRERE - B EQ AR
% PR B BB R 49 £325% o

FAMEHAXEGEaERREME2E
Wk BB AR R, (EEB) RN
T

2024 2023
—E-HEF —E =4

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATEF (EE) 13,356 (92,705)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable RERAREERDEERE

to the jurisdictions concerned MERFTEMNBIE 3,716 (22,783)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBWAZ BRI E

for tax purpose (10,342) (1,248)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAHBAE MG TE

for tax purpose 3,940 915
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERHIEEIB 2 B & 526 6,151
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHNBHERER L

differences not recognised MG B 4,637 17,011
Income tax expense FNBRAS 2,471 46
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12.

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Wages, salaries and allowances

12.

FR
FREF (BR)GENBRTIERK

w=R, (BR)

B

TE& e MER

2024
—g-mE
RMB’000
ARBF T

2023

RMB’000
ARBTIT

(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TEEEEH:) 35,643 31,541
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 3R VK& K| 5t 21 it 7%

(excluding directors) (TBREES) 1,962 5,239
Total staff costs (note (i) B TR (KIEEd)) 37,605 36,780
Cost of materials used in production HEEFTR MBI A 346,847 262,530
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment 5t & 5 & U 2B FE R &

loss recognised in respect of trade CRERIERER)

receivables, net DEREN S (35,970) 74,454
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of £ b [ U 7% T8 (B /&5 18

other receivables, net B EFEE (134) (6,428)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment & JiE I & Tk #E 22 49

loss recognised in respect of loan CREEERR)

receivables, net BEEEFE (105) 670
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HE¥E - BELREZEIE

equipment 73 383
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- -BEREBINE

equipment 4,719 4,540
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 537 536
Research and development expenses T AT S MR B R 2

included in administrative expenses (B 2 i) )

(note (i) 13,376 12,617
Operating lease rental relating to FHRHEE KEHEMS

short-term lease - 10
Auditor’s remuneration % B AN B 500 524

Notes: B 5
0] During the year ended 31 December 2024, included in the i) HE_Z_WNFEF+_A=+—H

(i)

cost of sales was approximately RMB26,036,000 (2023:

RMB28,956,000) related to staff cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, included in the

(i)

research and development expenses was approximately
RMB3,062,000 (2023: RMB1,751,000) related to staff cost.

LFEE HEXRATBEOARE
26,036,000t (Z T = =F: AR¥
28,956,0007T ) #) B TR AN «

HE-_T-_MWE+-_A=+—HItF
& SR PEENARS 062,000
T (ZZFZ=%: AR¥1,751,0007T )
BB TR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Profit/(loss)

13. BREFN (BE)

RATEE AR O TREE R SR
R,/ 512 TR A T BORE &

Profit/(loss) for the purposes of basic and FARETEARFERAFHEAE A

diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the

year attributable to owners
of the Company)

2024 2023
—E_NEF —E =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
R (EE)
FEEERERAREERT,
(BB SRR, (5E)

10,879 (92,751)

Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of RIEAHEERERR

ordinary shares for the purpose of HERT (BB MT @K

basic and diluted earnings/(loss) InREF a8

per share 412,550 412,550
Weighted average number of ordinary REsTE B lR#E

shares for the purpose of diluted BF (EE) /T mg

earnings/(loss) per share IntEFEHE A 412,550 412,550

E-F_NFET_A=t—RLFE"

For the year ended 31 December 2024, diluted earnings per
share is the same as the basic earnings per share because
the exercise price of the Company’s outstanding share options
was higher than the average market price for shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, as the Company’s
outstanding share options where applicable had an anti-dilutive
effect to the basic loss per share calculation, the exercise
of these potential ordinary shares is not assumed in the
calculation of diluted loss per share. The basic and diluted loss
per share are the same for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (“CEQ”) for the year are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances

FoREH
2024
3 “gopE —F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of director ARETT ARMTR ARETR
Executive directors HTES
M. Huang ERE - 108 35 380
Yang Guang X - - 25 360
Lin Zhenshuang Hhe% - - 328 33
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth {21k 166 163 - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TREE 166 163 - -
Yang Xuetai BEX 60 60 . -
Tso Sze Wei ER4 166 163 - -

14 EE - THHEABREEMNS

A) EERTHARMS

FARARRREER (BEARAT
BAEE ([TTBAE]) ) BN RE
MHZMEHFBmT:

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Share based payment Total

RARATHER HRBAERHA #it
2024 2023 2024 2024 2023
ZBI@E -R-=F CZBOMF 2-=fF CBC@F -B_=F
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARETR ARMTR AR®TT ARMTR ARETR
10 15 - - 325 503
5 = - 302 367
5 5 = - 33 340
= - = - 166 163
- = - 166 163
- = - 60 60
- = - 166 163

558 667 938 1,075

2 21 - - 1518 1,759

Mr. Huang is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. Emoluments of the independent non-executive
directors shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or CEO as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

EAREMBARBITHAR - £X
FIREBENMe B REEETHRA
BT R MRS BN S -

EXATHTEENNEEER
BEREEARBRAEEFH
RERBHOME - £ XPIRIBILIE
HTEFNHEIZRABEER
AprEERERFOME -

AEBEWENFHHTEEHT
B ERBFIMAARSE BN
AR B 1% 2 520 - Sk AE R BER
ZHE-ZMEFE BEEFHL
17 BR AR R B =k [R) B R 32 1 ] B

N
ik e

RRBHARBMERBBER
VEAEEEBEEBAARRE
ERETEEIEERBEAEARE
@ BRARNERIAF A E
DEMZR S ZHREH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2023: three)
directors. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2023: two) individuals during the year which are
employees were as follows:

14 EE THRAIAREEMNE (&)

TEREHEMAL

AEEAREELEESHFMAL
BR=%2(ZZ_=F:=Z8)8
F-FAERNESBME (ZT==
FWMBE)IALT(EE)OBME W
T

2024 2023

—E-NEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Salaries and allowances e MOERh 648 639
Retirement benefits scheme RKEFIET 23R

contributions 12 10

660 649

The aggregated emoluments of each of the remaining
two (2023: two) highest paid individuals fell within the
following bands:

EHMEBE(ZE_ZF MA )&
BEHWATHAHMN TATEH
& :

Number of individuals

A

2024

Nil to HKD1,000,000 = %1,000,000/8 7T

—E-MF

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

15. DIVIDEND

16.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2023: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(@)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”), and
this is the only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme to make the required contribution.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes operated by
the government of the PRC is to make the specified
contributions under the schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated profit or

loss of approximately RMB1,984,000 (2023: RMB5,266,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

15.

16.

iR 2E

FRERM B RR RS
HHRBEES N RES IR AT
TEZF |

#w
B
B

iR K18 R 5t &

@ AEEREFBRIELESH
EIEpI R aRES B -afEe R
SMmEERAEEEESHEE
THEBYXTIABENESEH -
BEGRESHE RBEEKEAR
#5% =% £ R & = 1,500 7T {E
WA EELEIMER B
FHEAETILZEE A#H5% 5k
PR % /= 1,500/ 7T 5T & ([ 58 i) 14
;) Mt AEAEBERE®RES
FrEELE A ERRNE—ET-&
BRG5ERIR B TR EAT
TERE N B EES 2 50 XA 6l
MR

b AEENFEMBARNEERZS
HEABERAEENBEREENR
RAEFIEH 8 - B A R AR &K
AERFE B 2 L AR R AR A 5 &
EHER - AEE R P EBT2E
HRARBAEF SN -EEA/R
BB E LR E K - N E
R AR -

REARETHEIANBHEAIO/AR
1,084,000t (ZE_=F: ARK
5,266,0007T) ' RAKEREE_-ZT
THFE+ZR=+—HIEFERFER
AR E ML R A% EFR BT A HR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - BERRE
Machinery and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
BF BERERE "E gt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARBTL
cosT B
AS at 1 January 2023 W-Z-=%—H—H 86,521 22,150 3,827 112,498
Additions NE - 6,976 537 7,513
Disposals HE - (1,918) (45) (1,963)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZZEZ=F+-A=1+—HBK
as at 1 January 2024 —Z-FE—A—H 86,521 27,208 4,319 118,048
Additions RE - 598 1,311 1,909
Disposals HeE - (328) (61) (389)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZ-mN&+=-A=+—8 86,521 27,478 5,569 119,568
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION REME
AS at 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—-A—H 45,620 18,169 2,401 66,190
Charge F i 3,096 1,048 396 4,540
Eliminated on disposals SR - (1,540) (40) (1,580)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZZEZ=F+-A=+—H8Bk
as at 1 January 2024 —E-mE—-A—H 48,716 17,677 2,757 69,150
Charge g 3,096 1,180 443 4,719
Eliminated on disposals o B ) 8 = (261) 43) (304)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZ-mE+=-A=+—8 51,812 18,596 3,157 73,565
NET CARRYING AMOUNTS REFE
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZB-m&E+=-A=+-A 34,709 8,882 2,412 46,003
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=%+-A=+—8 37,805 9,531 1,562 48,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE — %

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 2.5%

10%-25%

10%-33%

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

As at 31 December 2024, buildings with carrying amounts
of approximately RMB34,709,000 (2023: RMB37,805,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

e BRRHE

THME+ A=+ —HILFE

17. W% BERRHE @)

Ltz WmEREEEBIREREIN

THFRFERE -

gF FAHA52.5% °
B RS H BE

WL EE 10% E25%

qE 10% Z=33%

R-ZE-_ME+—_A=+—8 EHEEAE
DB ANERH34,709,0007T (ZE - =4

A R 37,805,000 ) 2 F B K IF 1
BAEEERBITMEZER

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FRREEE
Leasehold land
THE L
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2023 RZE—=F—A—HMEEE 13,123
Depreciation charge TERZ (536)
As at 31 December 2023 and as at 1 January 2024 RZE—=F+=-—A=+—H
M_ZT_HWHF—HA—H 12,587
Depreciation charge EmX (537)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2024 RZEZWMF+=-A=+—H
B AREE 12,050

The leasehold land is located in the PRC under the
medium-term lease. The Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from their previous owners, and
there are no longer payments to be made under the term of the
land lease, other than payments based on rateable values set
by the relevant government authorities. These payments vary
from time to time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities. The leasehold land components of these owned
properties are presented separately only if the payment can be
allocated reliably.

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land with carrying amount
of approximately RMB12,050,000 (2023: RMB12,587,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

REFPHHEOEEN DU RPE K
SESRMELMERLREE - — X8
(BRGES: mﬁﬁMﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ%%Iﬁ%Eﬁ
ZHEELH ARELTWHEE
B \ﬁ*ﬁf*ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ“*ﬂ’]}&“
R EEN KRN ZF T &SHTFEJFfﬁ
1t BAXN THBBTRF - E
3R BE RIS 0 BO By EZ?E%%%E’VTE
ELH D SR EE2S -

\\\\\

R-ZZE-_WMF+-_A=+—08 KHEE
58 AERH12,050,0007T (ZE =4
AR #12,587,00070) 2 A& £ # B K
RIEABREBEEBEIBITHE 2 ER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 78

2024
—B-MF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Raw materials R 117,207 112,685
Work-in-progress E&m 6,291 1,618
Finished goods RIRX on 12,150 1,063

135,648 115,366

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 20. EAFEFTABZNERMEE
OR LOSS

2024 2023
—E-HEF —E-=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets mandatorily measured BEIRAFEFABER
at FUTPL: FFEMERMEE:
Listed securities held for trading: BIEEEMN LT ES
— Equity securities listed in the Stock -REBERM TR
Exchange of Hong Kong (note) MR H (B5E) 6,427 7,779
Note: Fair value of the listed equity investment has been determined MeE: ETRAREZAFEDZEER
by reference to its quoted market price at the reporting date in WMEABREERMB M S REE
an active market. Fair value is classified as Level 1 recurring fair FEoRFEIBERE-—MEEERT
value measurement. EHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from contracts

B2 EWRE

2024 2023
—E-NEF

—E-=F
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT

KEEFPEHNE SR

with customers KIE 155,993 170,732
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBEEE (41,837) (77,807)
114,156 92,925

The Group generally allows average credit period of 90 to 180
days (2023: 90 to 180 days) to its trade customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance of credit losses, presented based on the invoice date:

rEE-RETEESIREFPNTHEER
HIRO0HE180H (ZE = =F:908 &
180R) - NEEYW EAL A FHE BRI AT
AT

AT TREZEBHEINNE 5 EWRIE
(HBREEBERE) KRBT

2024 2023

BN EF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

0 to 90 days 0%£90H 74,237 74,791
91 to 180 days 91£180H 15,030 11,002
181 to 365 days 181%365H 6,762 3,392
Over 365 days 8365 H 18,127 3,740
114,156 92,925

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB65,222,000 (2023:
RMB88,383,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period. Out of these gross carrying amount of
past due balances, approximately RMB44,363,000 (2023:
RMB72,322,000) have been past due 90 days or more.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

R-ZE-NME+-_A=+—H &X&EE
Z S RWHRESBEEERRESHAE S
ERERE B E A A AR 65,222,000 (=
T~ =4 AR¥88,383,0007T) H) E Uk
HE-REBHMEEEELHRT DA
R#44,363,0007T (ZE =4 AR¥
72,322,0007T ) 8 BA90K =k LA I ©

BEEZRUGIENAKREOER - EF
EENRENREZAREREHR &
SRMKIENEEEGENEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade receivables (net of allowance for credit
losses) that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities are as

21. ESEWRRIE (&)

NAEEREERNNEEEAINE
BEHENASEE S KR (S MR
EEERBEE T

follows:

usb
JPY

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR ARET T

e 86,479 81,448
Bt 22,797 18,261

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set

out in note 7.

22. PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 5 RACRIE R E R b 5 SN M &

7 o

22, FANRERHEMERRIR

2024 2023

—ENF —TZ=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Other receivables (note) H e s aE (B sE) 5,587 5,946

Value-added tax receivables JE Uk 12 B FR 12,110 6,058

Prepayments to suppliers of raw materials TR BR A} JE 7 5K T8 30,321 46,718
Amount due from the ultimate holding JE W S # AR R A R SRR

company 46 44

48,064 58,766

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (157) (291)

Current portion e E 47,907 58,475

The amount due from the ultimate holding company is
unsecured and interest-free and has no repayable terms.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and
amount due from the ultimate holding company are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note: The allowance for credit losses on other receivables has been
made at approximately RMB157,000 (2023: RMB291,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES

23.

e & =K

2024 2023
—E-NE —E =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables TE B EWE R 13,623 13,485
Less: Allowance for credit loss W EEEIERE (3,225) (3,222)
10,398 10,263

Analysis as DT B
Current mE 10,398 10,263

Note: The amounts represented loans to independent third parties,
which are unsecured, interest-bearing with 8% per annum and
repayable within one year. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the loan receivables were extended for one year.

The loan receivables were denominated in HKD, the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates. The
pledged time deposits are fixed interest bearing ranging
from 0.1% to 3.3% (2023: 0.05% to 3.3%) per annum and
mature within 1 year to 3 years (2023: within 1 year to 3
years) from the placement dates. The pledged time deposits
with the amounts of approximately of RMB22,843,000 (2023:
RMB22,673,000) were pledged to secure bills payables (2023:
bill payables) granted to the Group and will be released upon
settlement of bills payables (2023: bill payables).

The Group’s pledged time deposits and bank balances and
cash denominated in RMB of approximately RMB25,788,000
(2023: RMB32,308,000) which are located in the PRC are
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Bank balances and pledged time deposits are placed with
credit worthy banks with no history of default.

24,

Het: ZRBEREABIE = FRENER
AEE R F R L% 5T B R AR —
FREZE- REBEE_FT-_WMF+=-A

=t BLLFE BREFKEHR—F-

EWEFRAB T (FEERBEERZI
REE®)FTE-

EEAEHERRBRITERR
Be

RITEBRIBZBRITHMSAEFT L -2
HEBFEZIIZN T01% £3.3% (= F
— =% :0.05% £3.3% ) W & T F F| K
FFECHRABTFHE BRI FE3F
TEHE(ZE_ZF1FE3F) - HEY
AR®22,843,000L (ZEZ=F: AR
¥22,673,0007T) W E B E BT RTY
EAAEENENER (ST =4
ENEBE)NER BREEENSEER
TR =F ENER)ERER-

REBRTEBERNUAREHEZCE
WEBMGEREBTEHLESHOAR
05 788,000 (ZE - =% AR
32,308,0007T ) 5 H B 5| B & 32 {5 51 LA
MEEE SERNEEERERE -

RITHE B R ERE BERFRNEE
RIFREE N GCERMRTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

24. PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 24.

CASH (continued)

The Group’s pledged time deposits and bank balances and
cash that are denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities are as follows:

usD
HKD

X7

BT

EEAEHERRBRITERR
Re#)

AEBARBEEEERNIEEE I
MEBFTEZEERERFERRRITE
BRRIREIAT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR T T
449 113

749 2,825

Details of impairment assessment of pledged time deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BT BT R IRITERARE G
HIBHN R A M RRMEET -

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25 BESENRERESGE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Trade payables B 5B FIA 20,140 10,774
Bills payables (Note) FERTE& (M) 31,258 34,267
51,398 45,041

An ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RBEMRREZAM2I 2E RN
HIAZ BRE DM T :

2024 2023

—E-ME —T=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBTT

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 15,466 2,410
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,748 763
181 to 365 days 181£2365H 2,926 7,601
20,140 10,774
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of bills payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

25 BEFENRERESERE (&)

RBERRREZAH2INZENRE
ZERER AT :

2024 2023

—EF —ZEZ=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

0 to 90 days 0£90H 17,631 15,297
91 to 180 days 912180H 13,627 18,970
31,258 34,267

Note: These relate to trade payables in which the Group has been
offered by main suppliers to settle purchase of goods with bills
payables. Before bills payables expired, the Group continues
to recognise these obligations to suppliers as the Group is
obliged to make payments only on due dates of the bills, under
the same conditions as agreed with the suppliers without
further extension. In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
settlements of these bills are included within operating cash
flows based on the nature of the arrangements.

The credit periods granted by the suppliers normally ranging
from 30 days to 120 days for both years. As at 31 December
2024 and 2023, the maturity date of bills payables was ranged
from 90 days to 180 days. All are denominated in RMB.

The fixed time deposits with the amounts of approximately
RMB22,843,000 (2023: RMB22,673,000) were pledged to the
banks to secure bills payables granted to the Group and will
be released upon settlement of bills payables.

M ZEFBESREIEBHEHRALHE
RENBNRBEEHERBEEYNE
SN TR - REN R ERI A A
SEEERDLOHERINZEERT
JR B 2 A AR 15 S 4 FE 7 1 SE M AR )
G AEEEFNEHRIBAR
TNREME BEE— ST -
REEaRERERT ZREREN
BEBRBZHENMEAALERS

==
JLE °

RERERESETALS ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂﬁ—ﬂﬁﬁ
TF30HEI20H - R_E-_NNF K=
—=%+=ZHA=+—8" J%iﬁﬂfxa’m
HH N F90H £180H - FT A BN Z &
HUARBLE-

SR AEANRK22,843,000T (=&
— =4 AR¥22673,0007T)H F H1F
REEIBTFRITIEARNEEBEMNEZED
R BERRBRENERESERR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

26. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 26. FExtEH HMENFERAEY

LIABILITIES

&

2024 2023

—E-F —E =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Contract liabilities aHAEE 6,106 16,597
Other payables H b &~ FOE 1,682 1,791
Accrued expenses st E R 4,303 3,541
Interest received in advance T8 Uk A8 504 -
12,595 21,929

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of umbrella and the umbrella parts
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers. Contract liabilities
have changed as a result of negotiations with customers
based on historical performance.

As at 1 January 2024, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB16,597,000. During the year ended 31 December
2024, revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was
approximately RMB15,821,000 (2023: RMB3,164,000).

As at 31 December 2024, accrued expenses and other
payables denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
RMB486,000 and RMB542,000 respectively (2023:
RMB824,000 and RMB36,000 respectively).
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BNAREREMNITHREBRER
ZH REBESEHEANRETFEESH
HEMNBELRNRTHEMNENK AR
REBEROBAERFPETER &
mAaEC LR

R_Z-_ME—AF—HB A08EA
AR#16,607,000c - HE T -1
F+_A=Z=+—BLFE FAFEH
AHNEBEEBNERARZINAEAR
15,821,000 (ZE =% AR
3,164,0007T) °

RZZEZWOF+ZA=+—H WUET
FHEMEREAREMENSFIED B
A A R #486,0007T & A R #542,0007T

ZEZ=F R A ARS824,0007T
B A R#536,0007T) °
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS

Secured, repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period

27. RITER

2024 2023
—E-NEF

—E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T

81,470 73,390

As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings are at the fixed
interest rate ranging from 3.40% to 4.55% per annum (2023:
3.40% to 4.55% per annum).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank borrowings
of approximately RMB81,470,000 were secured by: () the
Group’s buildings with carrying amount of approximately
RMB34,709,000, (i right-of-use assets with carrying amount
of approximately RMB12,050,000 and (iii) personal guaranteed
by Mr. Huang, the director of the Company, and his spouse.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings of
approximately RMB73,390,000, were secured by: (i) the
Group’s buildings with carrying amount of approximately
RMB37,805,000, (i) right-of-use assets with carrying amount
of approximately RMB12,587,000 and (iii) personal guaranteed
by Mr. Huang, the director of the Company, and his spouse.

NZEBE-_ME+-_A=+—0 E17{E
FIEN F3.40% £4.55% (ZE - =4
3.40% £4.55% ) 2 [ETE FF|E5H 8 °

R-ZE-_NMF+_-_A=1+—H A%£H
#) N R #581,470,0007T &9 £8 17 18 FULA (i)
REEKREELN B AR34,709,000
THEFEG)EEEOAARE
12,050,000 7T {5 FAREE EE YRR IR - 0 (i)
AR EEHAEREREBREHEMBA
BR

RZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 &&%HE
49 A R #73,390,0007T K 4R 17 18 2 LA ()
AEEKRBEELN A AR37,805,000
THEFRG)VEEAEO A AR
12,587,000 C {5 FAREE E VBRI - 0 (i)
AARRESEAEREREBREHEA
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. EZEHEBEERS

As at 1 January 2023 n=
Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 11) AL E

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries

I B MY 2 ]

fE 1
APEBE
RMB’000
AR%T

T_=%—A—H 315
B (KIsE11) (315)

As at 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and
31 December 2024

R-ZFB-_=F+-_A=+—8"
—E-MFE-A—BR

—E_WFE+_A=1+—H -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB19,109,000 (2023 RMB25,719,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and unrecognised tax
losses will be expired within five years as at 31 December
2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has also not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB22,699,000 (2023:
RMB68,044,000).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Company’s subsidiary in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by the
subsidiary in the PRC of approximately RMB35,595,000 (2023:
RMB20,329,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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R-ZE-_NMF+_A=1+—H A%£H
BARBAFEEREHAR19,109,000
m(_v_n_i A B #25719,0007T )

PRI ARF B - R_ZT-WF
+fH:+ B - ARRRFMERTT
TER BARERBMIEEEERAEFAL
H MU AR EERERELERIEE
Eo

R_ZE-_WME+_A=Z+—RH 4&&
ERAMRAMREFEZBOARE
22,699,000 (ZE =% AR
68,044,0007T, ) #E R IR F 18 & 7 ©

BRIERRECEMESRE 5_1?)\$
—B—BR MARQRANPEFER

FT B B 5 A & /Emﬂx%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ?mo
FR A S B8] ] 420 o) e 22 R O 88 (B R

BERZFE AR A B kA E -

M R RAR B B S sR R P BIKT B A )
BEER A (R B A1 49 A R #35,595,0007T
— T - =4F: AR¥20,329,0005T) 3
YR EREANREETR ERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29, BRA
Number of shares Amount
R & B k-]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
—ECME —T-=F ZB-NFE —T_=F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=+—H =t+—H =+—H = =
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR FET FET
Ordinary shares of FREE0.082%E T
HK$0.032 each B AR
Authorised: EE:
At the beginning and at the end WA ¥R & HI 9] & #A K
of the reporting period 1,562,500 1,562,500 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRER:
At the beginning and the end RERE B R ER
of the reporting period 412,550 412,550 13,201 13,201
Nominal values of ordinary TmiEE
shares in RMB (AAR®BEE) 10,818 10,818
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends LTEBREEANZEINRERNKRE R
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per ARARNFREEZEE—R—EMNRE
share at the meeting of the Company. All ordinary share rank E-MBEBRRARAFGEEEZS
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. A&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ - —NF+ - A =+—HIFE

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 January 2015 for the purpose of
rewarding certain eligible persons for their past contributions
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the listing date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executive
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
directors or proposed director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors) of any of its
subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i)  grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - T —NF+ A =+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30.

(continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within
any 12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of options in
excess of 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company; and (ii) the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under
the listing rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days after the
offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.

LESAECBRERS (#)

RITER R BEER 8 LA KB RAN
EEMBRET S RERERARH
MR (BRETR I ARTREBR
B)ABRTHROZAKE  RNMEM
T EAREATFBBAR B EME
FEETIRMNA1% - LE—FRENE
PRHERRIB1%REE  AX AT RIEMAR - ()
A a) ek R (i) R BR K
g EHAER/RFAE ETRAIEA T T
MEMEAMENR-

AARBIEE FETHABEREER
R A EHEARTERE KA
BN IERITEEEAAE FAEE -
AN AT+ @A AR mE
BREEBIUIFRATEST LT MEEH
e AR T B R BB AR RIME
AR B2 TR M0.1% RIBEAR A
ARORBHBAPENKTETERER
385,000,000 7+ Al ZBER RPN R E KR
GEEMAE FAEE-

BEENBRETENHESET %M
R A BEEERROAHNHAR =8
gL AR TEETFIL YER
RBRBREFE LG TEERERNH
BETHARMBRE -—BREREHR-
BROEGT B2 EABRERE TNER
HEIR21A K Z I A A 2 A % 41.0/8
Lo

BERETEEREFET EAFER
Ti&sE: () AARRORERRH
BREER (BEAREXA)EBRAMN
MEBHERERILEST — FHALROHA
HBWHE: () ARBROREXREHRR
HA AT AEZE XA AR AEARE
RFTRFHUTE + K (i) B n (B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B R AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30. UEREEBERERS (&)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the number of shares in respect of
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
18,750,000 (2023: 18,838,000), representing 4.6% (2023:
4.6%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by the employees and consultants and
movements in such holdings:

Exercise
price
per share

Category of participants

Date of grant Exercisable period

Vested and
exercisable

as at
01.01.2023

RZZE-_ME+-—A=+—08 BiEE
T EI B R D M ARITERBREET
fFiam] TEITHARMNE B &18,750,000
A% ( —Z = =4 :18,838,0000%) ' {h &
BARQNBE#EITRMNE4.6% (==
F:46%) e

TREEREE MERMRFAR R BRE
ZrEREE:

Number of share options
BREHE

Vested and
exercisable
as at
31.12.2023
and

l11 01.2024

Vested and
exercisable

as at
31.12.2024

Lapsed Lapsed

RZ-BZZF R=B-MF
—-A-HBE TR ZEr=[
SREER BEAH SRITEE BERTTE BEA¥ BERUGE B4R CEHREBRIUGE
HKS
BT
Employees of the Group ~ 10.04.2019 10.04.2019 - 10.04.2029 (note) 0.900 18,750,000 - 18,750,000 - 18,750,000
TEEER “E-NFNMA+RE  ZET-AEMA+RE
ZE-NERATA (M)
08.04.2021 08.04.2021 - 07.04.2023 (note) 0.740 18,930,000 (18,930,000 - - -
ZEI-ERANR ZEC-FMANREZE
“E-ZEMALAE (M)
12.05.2022 12.05.2022 - 11.05.2024 (note) 0.462 88,000 - 88,000 (88,000) -
“E-ZFRATZH ZT--FRAtZHZ
“ECIMERAT-H
(Bzr)
37,768,000 (18,930,000 18,838,000 (88,000) 18,750,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.819 0.740 0.898 0.462 0.900
IEFHREE (BT
Note: These share options have no vesting conditions and the Mi: ZEBERBITEXEEBEGRMEG 5

vesting date is the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 88,000 share
options were lapsed, no share option was exercised, expired
or cancelled.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 18,930,000 share
options were lapsed, no share option was exercised, expired
or cancelled.
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE — %

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group also has the following material related
party transactions.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, who are considered as the
key management personnel of the Group, the Group did not
have any other significant compensations to key management
personnel.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

31.

32.

e BRRHE

THME+ A=+ —HILFE

AR S R

B e M mREMA D AEEEN
AEBTEANTEANEBR IR S

FTEEBRASHE

B aniR & B IS R M a1 4P AR AR /=
AEBETREBABZASHEESNE
BXfzME AEEYBEAETEE
BABXMEMEMERHE-

EFERFERTABZHMEAFHEZER
SERBEARREMSBBRET -

METHELENABYHR

TREIAKEEMETDELNAR
BHFE ERASIEREZE

MEARBEEINABDERSRELR
ARERECRIERAKEZERS
MEXRDBABERDRERENAE-

Interest payables  Bank borrowings Total
FEAT RIS RITER @ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARETT
As at 1 January 2023 RZZE_=F—H—H - 68,100 68,100
Financing cash flows BERSME (3,045) 5,290 2,245
Non-cash changes: FHRLEH:
Interest expense recognised ERRFEZH
(note 10) (FfizE10) 3,045 - 3,045
As at 31 December 2023 and E"_ T-=—F+ZA=+—HBXK
as at 1 January 2024 —E-NF—-A—H - 73,390 73,390
Financing cash flows BERERE (4,102 8,080 3,978
Non-cash changes: FReE
Interest expense recognised BHRMEXH (ME10)
(note 10) 4,102 - 4,102
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-mNE+=A=+—H - 81,470 81,470

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 {27
20244F F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 33. XA TN BRI L EESE

OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY =
(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY A AEQEFEFHERREK
2024 2023
—EI@F —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REM B AR 219,132 219,132
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEfT5RI8 180 174
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT B A B FRIE 17,661 20,596
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 174 168
18,015 20,938
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals expenses and other payables Bt & 3 & H b B~ 28 479 816

Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTH B R R FAE 37,912 36,679
38,391 37,495
Net current liabilities REBEETE (20,376) (16,557)
Net assets BEFE 198,756 202,575
Capital and reserves ERK#E
Share capital &% < 10,818 10,818
Reserves i 187,938 191,757
Total equity BT 198,756 202,575

RRABHBRARER T _HF=A
“TN\HEESEMERREDE I
HIIATRREZERE:

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Huang Weniji Lin Zhenshuang
BENE HEE
Director Director

EF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—Z —WF+ A =+—HILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 33. XA TN BRI L EES B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued) R(E)

(B) MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (B) AATFIEENWEE

Share Share Translation ~ Share option Merger  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BAx  BOEE EREE BRERE  AHRE  RHER it

RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'OOD  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBI0D
ARBTL  AREBTR ARETT ARETL ARKTT ARMTR ARETR

As at 1 January 2023 RZE-=F-F-H 10,818 177,39 40,545 11,238 229,897 (192,039) 277,853
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (75,662) (75,662)
Exchange differences on translation ~ BEEBERRELL

of financial statements ERER - - 384 - - - 384
Total comprehensive ERRERS/ (Bx) 88

income/(expense) for the year - - 384 - - (75,662) (75,278)
Lapse of share options BREXR - - - (5,278) - 5278 -
As at 31 December 2023 and RZZ-Z8+-A=1-H

1 January 2024 k-Z-mE-A-H 10,818 177,394 40,929 5,960 229,897 (262,423) 202,575
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (3,195) (3,195)
Exchange differences on translation ~ BEEBRRELL

of financial statements ERZEE - - (624) - - - (624)
Total comprehensive expense FREERSES

for the year - - (624) - - (3,195) (3,819)
Lapse of share options BREXR - - - (13) - 13 -
As at 31 December 2024 R=Z-mE+=B=+-8 10818 177,34 40305 5947 29897 (265,605) 198,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T —F+ A =+—HIFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. MEBLABIZFE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, particulars of the RZEZWNER_ZE_=ZF+=A
subsidiaries of the Company are listed as follows: =+t—H XRAGMBRARFBEET:

Country/place of Proportion of ownership Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power held share capital/
Name of subsidiary date of incorporation  shares held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

HRRIER/ ERRFEAARELER BRTRAR

WEARAR PR A &R FRE LBl BE/EMER FEEE
2024 2023
“E-mE -—E-=#
%

B
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD1 Investment holding
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited RBRLHS LBk 1EZn REER
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1  Investment holding
Company Limited
ERREBBERAT 0 LER BT REZR
HK Baohui Industry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$20,000  Dormant
BEERBEXEARLT BE Lk 20,0008T EELE
Zenith Century Limited BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD100  Dormant
Zenith Century Limited EBRELHS LBk 100%(r EEEX
Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd.*" PRC Paid up capital 100 100 HK$180,000,000  Manufacturing and

sales of umbrellas
and umbrella parts

BRENGEERAF HhE BEEAR 180,000,000 BERHERD
e
Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD10,000  Investment holding
Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited RBREAHS LBk 10,000%m  REER
Wing Wing (Hong Kong) Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000  Investment holding
KEBBBEEARRF &R LEk 1,000,000  REER
Jinjiang Jingting Trading Co., Limited*" PRC Paid up capital 100 100 RMB1,000,000  Sale of umbrellas
and rain gears
BIREBSERAR" HE HRAR ARH1,000000 HEFLRFERR
* For identification purpose only. * 12 AR -
A The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the A ZEBANFEMKAINEEEDSE -
PRC.
* For identification purposes only * EREE
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34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - ZE _WF+ =+ —HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Except for Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited, Zenith Century
Limited and Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2025.

34.

35.

MELRZFHE (&)

B Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited »
Zenith Century Limited & Wing Ka
Investment Holdings Limited b+ Fr G £
Pt B AT AR RFEERFE -

B RS AL R BB A A
B WA RN ESES -

ERFAMEBAREEEREANER
PR SZ/ B ST 0B 1
B S B W&

GAVE®RRECN _ZE_AE=A
“t+\BEEZE=eHERRERE-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilites A F &7 AEEBR BE A @G BREEHE T
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZEZEEUNEBENBEHBE  HEkaC T
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out FEHEBIXLGEE P HHRE -

below.

RESULTS ES

For the year ended 31 December
BZ+t-HA=+t—HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—E-NE —T--F —E-— —E-—F =—ZE-FF

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRE ARETT ARBTT ARBTR

Revenue & 353,264 294,467 353,948 306,054 344,390
Gross profit EF 30,680 21,392 35,366 26,900 52,795
Profit/(loss) before tax BREE AT A
(B#E) 13,356 (92,705) (24,641) (125,182) (31,823)
Profit/(loss) for the year RRFHEE AEMNG
attributable to owners FEEEH,
of the Company (B#E) 10,879 (92,751) (29,433) (127,729) (34,312)

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—~H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—g-mf -T-=f -T-—F -T-—F -E-TfF

<= —<

RMB'000  RVB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETRT AREBTT AREBTR

—=<— —_—<—— —=<—

Non-current assets FEMBEE 58,053 66,485 71,141 101,333 105,238
Current assets TEEE 341,254 315,575 397,299 349,099 476,371
Current liabilities mENBE 148,128 142,462 136,313 133,862 154,971
Non-current liabilities FRBaE - - 315 364 413
Net assets EEFE 251,449 239,598 331,812 316,206 426,225
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